

REQUESTED COMMISSION ACTION:

Consent	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> Ordinance	Resolution	Consideration/ Discussion	Presentation
<p>SHORT TITLE <u>An Ordinance of the City Commissioner of the City of Pompano Beach, Florida, Amending Chapter 76, "Parking Meters," of the Pompano Beach Code of Ordinances by amending Section 76.02, "Definitions," to add and delete definitions; By amending Section 76.05, "Authority to Establish Parking Meter Zones," to add Authority for a City Manager's Designee; By amending Section 76.06, "Parking Meter Zones and Fees Established," to add new metered zones and parking meter fees throughout the City limits and to provide for additional permit requirements; By amending Section 76.07, "Time Limited Parking Zones," to establish time-metered zones, 24-hour construction parking zone and electronic charging stations and provide requirements for same; By amending Section 76.08, "Enforcement," by adding certain prohibited acts within metered zone areas; Providing for severability; Providing an effective date.</u></p>				

Summary of Purpose and Why:

The purpose of this proposed Ordinance amendment is to primarily include parking rates for the newly constructed Pier Parking Garage Structure, tentatively scheduled to open prior to July 4, 2016. Additional changes are being recommended to clarify parking zones or policies within the City which have evolved over time (i.e. flat parking rates for special events and holidays, timed limit zone parking, construction permits, additional pay by phone future locations etc.). There are no parking rate increases being proposed as part of this proposed amendment. Please refer to Finance Dept. Memo #16-111 for additional information.

- (1) Origin of request for this action: Finance Department
- (2) Primary staff contact: Suzette Sibble, Finance Director Ext. 4680
- (3) Expiration of contract, if applicable: NA
- (4) Fiscal impact and source of funding: NA

DEPARTMENTAL COORDINATION	DATE	DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION	DEPARTMENTAL HEAD SIGNATURE
Finance	<u>6/2/16</u>	<u>Approval</u>	<u>S. Sibble</u>
City Attorney	<u>6/2/16</u>	<u>—</u>	<u>[Signature]</u>
Budget	<u>6/2/16</u>	<u>—</u>	<u>[Signature]</u>

[Signature]
X City Manager

[Signature]

ACTION TAKEN BY COMMISSION:

Ordinance	Resolution	Consideration
Workshop		
1 st Reading	1 st Reading	Results: _____
2 nd Reading		Results: _____



FINANCE DEPARTMENT

MEMO 16-111

Date: June 2, 2016

To: Mayor and City Commission

Via: Dennis Beach, City Manager

From: Suzette Sibble, Finance Director

Chris Brown, Redevelopment Management Associates

A handwritten signature in black ink, appearing to be "Dennis Beach", is written over the "Via:" line of the memo header.

Since 2013 when the City Commission approved the creation of a Parking Enterprise Fund, the City has made significant improvements to both parking supply and to operations. The most significant advance has been the construction of the new five level Pier Parking Garage containing 609 parking spaces together and 54 spaces in the surface area surrounding the Garage. Furthermore, the City leased private land on A1A, called Parcel "A," upon which approximately 300 spaces were created in close proximity to the Beach. In addition, in 2015 the City retained the services of a professional parking management company, Denison Parking Inc., to focus on enforcement in order to preserve the financial capacity of the system to be able to sustain current and planned long-term parking infrastructure efforts. Over past years, staff and the City's parking consultants have worked to modernize the parking management system, particularly with regard to adding the payment feature of "pay-by-phone, purchasing more advanced meter stations, and switching to a "pay-by-plate system (from a pay by parking space number).

The goal of parking management modernization is to provide better service to the City's parking customers, to increase the parking supply in order to keep up with parking demand, and to increase parking revenue, which can then be used for constructing more parking and pay for parking operating expenses. Modernization over the next five years will continue, in order to improve parking in both the beach area, as well as the areas west of the Intercoastal Waterway.

The following parking ordinance amendment for the City Commission's consideration addresses several important issues regarding parking policy, principally the new Pier Garage operation. Parking fees are not being increased. The amendment will accomplish, among other things, the codification of fees for special events/holidays or special circumstance permits (i.e. construction), as well as allow for future pay by phone parking zones in select locations. The Summary of the Ordinance is stated as follows:

1. Set the parking rates for the new parking garage, opening on or about July 1, 2016. The rate will be in line with the current rates, which are \$1.25 per hour;
2. Provide monthly overnight parking passes on the 5th floor of the Pier Garage for residents, non-residents, and businesses at a rate of \$150 per month;
3. Set Holiday and special event parking rates for two highly desirable locations, the Pier Garage and Parcel "A," which is located on East Atlantic Blvd and A1A, so that Denison Parking may collect a flat rate of \$10 in lieu of using meters or tickets so that the service level to customers will increase (flat rate systems eliminate automobile back-ups in the garage and long lines at the pay stations during holidays/special events). The \$10 flat rate is currently being charged in Parcel "A."
4. Enable valet parking in the new garage, operated by the City's parking management company, Denison Parking (as needed);
5. Install additional Pay-by-Phone payment system in areas where it is uneconomical to install parking meter pay stations. The following streets will add Pay-by-Phone: NE 16th Street, Riverside Drive, NE 3rd Street (next to the garage), and others deemed feasible. Please note that Pay-by-phone will be available at all parking locations alongside pay stations.
6. Remove all single parking meters ("lollipops") and replace them with a Pay-by-Phone system or with pay stations or both, depending upon the number of parking spaces being served. The streets marked for lollipop removal include Briny Avenue, NE 2nd Street (next to the garage), NE 15th Street, and NE 13th Street. Lollipop systems are antiquated and result in higher levels of vandalism and maintenance/replacement levels.
7. Establishing a time limit for electric charging stations of 2 hours, with no charge for use of City electricity, but a meter fee must be paid during use of the parking space;
8. Provide, on a City-wide basis, 30-minute loading zones that are exempt from meter fees such as the loading zone on Briny Avenue, but are subject to a citation after the time limit. We are currently experiencing misuse of the loading zone on Briny Avenue by business owners parking their truck in the zone.
9. Establishing a rate of \$10 per day per parking space for use of public parking by contractors for use in storing equipment, vehicles and equipment for nearby construction projects. We have had several requests so far this year from contractors wishing to rent parking spaces on Pompano Beach Boulevard for construction projects at condominiums, such as repairing balconies or owners remodeling their residences.

All recommended changes are in an effort to streamline operations for the City's evolving parking infrastructure system, as well as clarify existing parking locations.

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH
Broward County, Florida

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 76, "PARKING METERS," OF THE POMPANO BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING SECTION 76.02, "DEFINITIONS," TO ADD AND DELETE DEFINITIONS; BY AMENDING SECTION 76.05, "AUTHORITY TO ESTABLISH PARKING METER ZONES," TO ADD AUTHORITY FOR A CITY MANAGER'S DESIGNEE; BY AMENDING SECTION 76.06, "PARKING METER ZONES AND FEES ESTABLISHED," TO ADD NEW METERED ZONES AND PARKING METER FEES THROUGHOUT THE CITY LIMITS AND TO PROVIDE FOR ADDITIONAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS; BY AMENDING SECTION 76.07, "TIME LIMITED PARKING ZONES," TO ESTABLISH TIME-METERED ZONES, 24-HOUR CONSTRUCTION PARKING ZONE AND ELECTRONIC CHARGING STATIONS AND PROVIDE REQUIREMENTS FOR SAME; BY AMENDING SECTION 76.08, "ENFORCEMENT," BY ADDING CERTAIN PROHIBITED ACTS WITHIN METERED ZONE AREAS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, pursuant to law, ten (10) days' notice has been given by publication in a paper of general circulation in the City, notifying the public of this proposed ordinance and of a public hearing in the City Commission Chambers of the City of Pompano Beach; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing before the City Commission was held pursuant to the published notice described above, at which hearing the parties in interest and all other citizens so desiring had an opportunity to be and were, in fact, heard; now, therefore,

SECTION 1. That Section 76.02, "Definitions," of Chapter 76, "Parking Meters," of the City of Pompano Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows:

§ 76.02 DEFINITIONS.

For the purpose of this chapter the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning:

APPROXIMATE NUMBER OF SPACES. The approximate number of parking spaces in the described location. The number is not intended to limit the number of parking spaces approved to be metered but is intended to provide information to the reader.

CAMPER AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES. For the purposes of this chapter the term shall include, but not limited to, travel trailers, truck campers, motor homes, camping trailer, and van conversions.

CONSTRUCTION AREA RENTAL. Any area of public parking, usually a parking lot or on-street parking, that is leased to a developer or contractor for the purpose of staging construction, for activities such as delivering and storing materials, equipment, trucks, and other construction apparatus, situated in close proximity of a permitted construction site.

~~**HOLIDAY.** For the purposes of this chapter, the term holiday shall include New Year's Day, Easter, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.~~

INTRACOASTAL WATERWAY. The Intracoastal Waterway ("ICWW") is the navigable canal situated parallel to and west of the Atlantic Ocean.

PAY BY TELEPHONE. For certain designated meter zones, the parking customer or patron of a customer, such as a business owner serving a customer, may pay meter fees by telephone, utilizing a third party payment and collection agency through the vendor's cellular telephone and smart device application ("App") in lieu of utilizing a parking meter for payment.

...

PARKING METER SPACE OR METER SPACE. Any space within a parking meter zone which is duly designated for the parking of a single vehicle by lines painted or otherwise durably marked on the curb or on the surface of the street.

PARKING METER ZONE. Any public parking facility upon which parking meters are installed and in operation. This term includes **MULTI-SPACE PARKING METER ZONES**, which are any space or group of spaces controlled by a single multi-space parking meter. Parking spaces within parking meter zones are not numbered; ~~so as to allow users to identify the appropriate space number in order to pay the appropriate fees to park in said spaces.~~ however, the parked

vehicle's license plate number is entered into the multi-space meter and is read by the parking enforcement attendant, so as to identify the vehicle's payment of the appropriate fees to park in said spaces.

PARKING PERMIT DECAL, HANGTAG OR CARD. The city may issue a decal, hangtag or card to a purchaser of a resident or business pass that allows the purchaser's vehicle to be parked in a Parking Meter Zone without having to advance funds into the meter, subject to the charges established by § 76.06.

PUBLIC PARKING FACILITY. Any publicly owned parking lot, parking garage, parking space or parking area.

RAMPING AREA. Any area used by a valet parking service that is used by the owner of a vehicle to drop off its vehicle in order for a parking valet service to move a customer's vehicle to a storage area and return the vehicle to its owner at the end of a valet service occurrence.

...

SECTION 2. That Section 76.05, "Authority to Establish Parking Meter Zones," of Chapter 76, "Parking Meters," of the City of Pompano Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows:

§ 76.05 AUTHORITY TO ESTABLISH PARKING METER ZONES.

The City Manager, or ~~Public Works Director~~ Designee are each authorized as follows:

- (A) To determine and designate parking meter zones.

...

SECTION 3. That Section 76.06, "Parking Meter Zones and Fees Established," of Chapter 76, "Parking Meters," of the City of Pompano Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by replacing Table 76.06(A) and amending sub-section (C) to read as follows:

§ 76.06 PARKING METER ZONES AND FEES ESTABLISHED.

...

TABLE 76.06(A): Designated Parking Meter Zones and Meter Fees

Meter Fee and Restrictions							
Area East of ICWW, North of Atlantic Blvd.							
Zone	General Location	Approx. No. of Spaces	Vehicle Type	Meter Fee during Regular Days	Fee during Holidays and Events	Flat Rate Permit for Residents, Businesses, Employees	Comments
Hillsboro Inlet Park	2700 North Ocean Blvd	21	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	
Alsdorf Boat Launch Facility and Parking Lot	14 th Street	82	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	
		78	Vehicle with trailer	\$10.00 per 24-hour period	\$10.00 per 24-hour period	Not available	
North Ocean Park Parking Lot	3424 NE 16 th Street, east of A1A	34	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	
NE 16 th Street (no meters installed)	NE 16 th Street, west of A1A	0-6	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Pay-by-phone only
NE 15th Street	NE 15 th Street, west of A1A	7	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Remove lollipop meters; pay-by-phone only
NE 13th Street	NE 13 th Street, east of A1A	9	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Remove lollipop meters; pay-by-phone only
Pier Garage	221 N. Pompano Beach Blvd.	509	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$10.00 flat rate	\$150 per month for residents, businesses, 5 th floor only, 100 permits maximum	

Pier Garage	221 N Pompano Beach Blvd	100	Valet Only	\$7.50-\$10.00 flat rate	\$15.00 flat rate	Not available	
Pier Surface Parking Lots and Pier Street	221 N Pompano Beach Blvd.	54	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	
Pier and Beach Restaurant Lot	222 N Pompano Beach Blvd.	7	Handicap, Police, special vehicles only, expectant mothers	No charge	No charge	Not available	Spaces to be removed for restaurant construction
Pompano Beach Blvd.	East side Pompano Beach Blvd.	108	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	
NE 3 rd Street	NE 3 rd St. South side between A1A and P. B. Blvd	0-4	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Pay-by-phone only
NE 2 nd Street	NE 2 nd St. North side Between A1A and P B Blvd.	10	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Removing lollipop meters; pay-by phone only
NE 2 nd Street	NE 2 nd St. between A1A and Riverside Drive	8	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Pay-by-phone only
Beach Parking Lot	NE Corner of Atlantic Blvd. and A1A	116	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$10.00 flat rate	Not available	
Beach Parking (Grassy Lot)	NE Corner of Atlantic Blvd. and A1A	175	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$10.00 flat rate	Not available	

Atlantic Boulevard	Atlantic Blvd., between A1A and P.B. Blvd.	14	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	
Oceanside Parking Lot	Riverside Drive and A1A	128	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$60.00 per year resident daytime parking pass with restrictions	
Oceanside Parking Lot	Riverside Drive and A1A	150	Valet	na	na	License agreement required	
Riverside Drive	Riverside Drive, east side	3-25	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Pay-by-phone only
Library Parking Lot	NE 3 rd Street at Riverside Drive	25	Vehicle		No charge	No charge	Parking free to library patrons and staff

Area East of ICWW, South of Atlantic Blvd

Zone	General Location	Approx. No. of Spaces	Vehicle Type	Meter Fee during Regular Days	Fee during Holidays and Events	Flat Rate Permit for Residents and Employees	Comments
Briny Avenue (west side)	Briny Ave. south of Atlantic Blvd., 0-99 block	2	Vehicle	No charge	No charge	Not available	Loading and Unloading only, 30 minutes limit; longer requires application
Briny Avenue (east and west side)	Briny Avenue south of Atlantic Blvd., 200 block	4-8	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	
Briny Avenue (east and west side)	Briny Avenue south of Atlantic Blvd., 400 block	0-4	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Remove lollipop meters, pay-by-phone only

Briny Avenue (east and west side)	Briny Avenue south of Atlantic Blvd., 600 block	3-7	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Remove lollipop meters, pay-by-phone only
Briny Avenue (east side)	Briny Avenue south of Atlantic Blvd., 800 block	0-4	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Remove lollipop meters, pay-by-phone only
SE 1 st Street On-Street Parking between A1A and Hibiscus	SE 1 st St. between A1A and Hibiscus	0-8	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Pay-by-phone only
SE 2 nd Street On-Street Parking between A1A and Hibiscus	SE 1 st St. between A1A and Hibiscus	0-8	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	Pay-by-phone only
SE 2 nd Street On-Street Parking between Briny Ave. and A1A	SE 2 nd St. between Briny Ave. and A1A	9	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	Not available	
SE 4 th Street On-Street Parking	SE 4 th St. between Briny Ave. and A1A	0-4	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour		Non-metered
SE 6 th Street On-Street Parking	SE 6 th St. between Briny Ave. and A1A	10	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour		Non-metered
SE 8 th Street On-Street Parking	SE 8 th St. between Briny Ave. and A1A	0-5	Vehicle	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour	\$.25 per 12 minutes or \$1.25 per hour		Non-metered

City Wide Regulations							
All On-Street Handicap Public Parking	City Wide	na	Vehicle	No charge	No charge	Not available	Florida Statute prohibits charging for on-street, handicap parking
All Off-Street Handicap Public Parking	City Wide	na	Vehicle	Rate charge according to parking zone	Rate charge according to parking zone	Not available	Examples include garages and lots
All Electric Charging Stations	City Wide	na	Electric plug-in vehicle only	Meter rate of zone	Meter rate of zone	Not available	Payment of meter required if metered; 2-hour limit for charging
All On-Street and Off-Street Loading Zones	City Wide	na	Vehicle, truck, van	No charge	No charge	Not available	30-minute time limit; longer period by application
Construction Parking	City Wide	na	Construction materials, equipment, trucks			\$10 per day per space not to exceed 30 days; admin fee of \$150 per application	Application required for short term; license; agreement required for long term

...

(C) *Parking permits for certain zones.*

(1) A “resident parking permit decal” may be purchased from the city’s Treasury Division Office, or its designee, by all residents which shall authorize the parking of the vehicle for which the permit was acquired in any parking meter space located within the ~~Pier Parking Lot and Oceanside Parking Lot~~ as described in Table 76.06(A) without requiring the payment of money into the space’s parking meter from 6:00 a.m. until 8:00 p.m. daily. No overnight parking is allowed under this resident parking permit decal.

(a) The cost of a 12-month decal for the Oceanside Parking lot shall be \$60.00, including applicable taxes.

(b) The cost of a 12-month decal for a second vehicle shall be \$10.00, including applicable taxes.

(c) The cost of a 6-month decal shall be \$30.00, including applicable taxes.

(2) A “monthly overnight parking permit ~~decal~~ hangtag” may be purchased from the city’s Treasury Division Office, or its designee, by all residents, ~~and non-residents, and Pompano Beach business owners~~, which shall authorize the parking of the vehicle for which the permit was acquired in any parking meter space located within the Oceanside Parking Lot as described in Table 76.06(A) without requiring the payment of money into the space’s meter ~~overnight from 12:00 a.m. until 11:59 p.m. daily for the period being contracted.~~

(a) The cost of the monthly overnight parking permit ~~decal~~ hangtag shall be \$30.00, including applicable taxes.

(b) The monthly overnight parking permit hangtag is subject to availability, determined by the City Manager or designee.

(3) A “monthly overnight parking permit card” may be purchased from the city’s Treasury Division Office, or its designee, by all residents, non-residents, and Pompano Beach business owners, which shall authorize the parking of the vehicle for which the permit was acquired in any parking meter space located within the Pier Parking Garage as described in Table 76.06(A) and with restrictions described below without requiring the payment of money into the space’s meter from 12.00 am until 11:59 pm daily for the period being contracted.

(a) The parking location of the Pier Garage monthly overnight parking permit card shall be restricted to the fifth floor (roof level) of the garage.

(b) The cost of the monthly overnight parking permit card shall be \$150.00, including applicable taxes.

(c) The maximum number of monthly overnight parking permit cards is one per resident or non-resident and two per business.

(d) The monthly overnight parking permit card is subject to availability, a maximum of 100 permits may be issued for any one-month period.

~~(3)~~ (4) Each permit shall cover the specified time period for the permit, from the date of purchase. The application procedure and the form of the permit shall be determined by the City Manager or Designee. The monthly overnight parking permit card shall be registered to a specific vehicle and its license plate and may not be transferred to another person or vehicle.

~~(4)~~ (5) Permits Residential parking permit decals and monthly overnight parking permit hangtags are not valid for special events, as may be determined by the City Manager.

(D) The city may suspend or modify hourly metered parking requirements to a one-time daily parking fee in any city public parking facility for city sponsored or other special events as determined by the City Manager or Designee.

~~(D)~~ (E) Collection of Deposited Moneys. The City administration shall provide for the regular collection of the money deposited in the parking meters. All of the money shall be deposited into the Parking Enterprise Fund of the city.

SECTION 4. That Section 76.07, “Time Limited Parking Zones,” of Chapter 76, “Parking Meters,” of the City of Pompano Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows:

§ 76.07 TIME LIMITED PARKING ZONES.

The City Manager or ~~Public Works Director~~ Designee are each authorized to determine and designate time limited parking zones, where it is determined that the limitation on the length of time vehicles may be parked shall be necessary to aid in the regulation, control, and inspection of parking vehicles.

(A) Fifteen Minute Parking Zone. Parking or standing a vehicle in a designated space in a public parking facility shall be lawful for a maximum of 15 minutes. The purpose of the 15 minute zone is to provide highly convenient parking for customers and vendors of retailers, such as dry cleaners, restaurants and others, to park and pick up their goods such as clothing and food products. Meter zone fees shall apply.

(B) Thirty Minute Loading Zone. Parking or standing a vehicle, including a truck or van, in a designated space in a public parking facility shall be lawful for a maximum of 30 minutes. Meter zone fees shall apply.

(C) One-Hour Parking Zone. Parking or standing a vehicle in a designated space in a public parking facility shall be lawful for a maximum of one hour. Meter zone fees shall apply.

~~(A)~~ (D) Two-Hour Parking Zone. Parking or standing a vehicle in a designated space in a public parking facility ~~described in subsection (2)(a) below~~ shall be lawful for a maximum of two hours. Meter zone fees shall apply.

~~(B)~~ (E) *Eight-Hour Parking Zone.* Parking or standing a vehicle in a designated space in a public parking facility ~~described in subsection (2)(a) below~~ shall be lawful for a maximum of eight hours. Meter zone fees shall apply.

(F) Twenty-Four Hour Construction Parking Zone. Parking by construction vehicles, storing materials and equipment, and use for construction purposes is permitted by permit only by the payment of a fee which is described in Table 76.06(A). The number of days of the use of public parking, including on-street parking as well as public parking in lots or garages, shall be governed by the permit itself. A permit for a period of less than 30 days may be approved by the City Manager or City Finance Director. A permit greater than thirty days must be approved by the City Commission by a license agreement. The City's vehicles are exempt from this section.

(G) Electric Charging Stations. Payment of parking in an electric charging space provided by the city shall require the payment of the meter fee in which the charging space is located and the maximum time of occupancy of the space shall be two hours. The electric vehicle must be a plug-in type.

SECTION 5. That Section 76.08, "Enforcement," of Chapter 76, "Parking Meters," of the City of Pompano Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by to read as follows:

§ 76.08 ENFORCEMENT.

...

(B) *Certain acts prohibited and subject to penalty per City Code of Ordinances 70.11, Illegally Parked Vehicles.* It shall be unlawful and a violation of the provisions of this chapter, subject to penalty per City Code of Ordinances § 70.11, Illegally Parked Vehicles, for any person to cause, allow, permit, or suffer any vehicle registered in his name to:

(1) Be parked in a parking meter zone and failing to pay the meter fee;

...

(10) Be parked in any parking space in a parking meter zone or time limited parking zone with the rear end of the vehicle facing into the space provided for parking, if signage is provided that specifically prohibits back-in parking; a warning citation shall be issued to a vehicle for first time violations of this subsection;

(11) Be parked in any parking space designated as a handicapped parking space without displaying a permit for handicapped parking

which has been issued by a governmental agency having the authority to issue the permit;

(12) Be parked in a parking meter zone or time limited parking zone which requires a parking permit without displaying a valid permit; or

(13) Be parked in a parking meter zone or time limited parking zone for any purpose set forth in City Code of Ordinances § 71.08, Parking For Certain Purposes Prohibited; Towing;

(14) Be parked in a parking meter zone or time limited parking zone which provides electric charging without making payment for the meter and/or occupying the electric charging station parking space for a period of time longer than two hours; the electric vehicle must be a plug-in type;

(15) Be parked in a loading zone that restricts parking in accordance with Section 76.07; or

(16) Be parked in a valet ramping area or valet storage area that has been licensed to be used for valet parking by the City.

SECTION 6. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

SECTION 7. This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage.

PASSED FIRST READING this _____ day of _____, 2016.

PASSED SECOND READING this _____ day of _____, 2016.

LAMAR FISHER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

ASCELETA HAMMOND, CITY CLERK

MEB/jrm
5/31/16
l.ord/Ch76/2016-213